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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Dear Members,

The Directors have pleasure to present the 34" Annual Report on the business and operations of
Khadim India Limited (“the Company”) together with Audited Financial Statements for the Financial

Year ended 31* March, 2015.

Financial Results

The Company'’s financial performance for the year ended March 31%, 2015 is summarized below:-

Fig. In Rs.

2014-2015

2013-2014

Revenue from Operations (Net)

4,60,15,75,526

4,78,13,98,902

Other Income 5,54,56,991 4,91,20,866
Profit before Depreciation, Interest, and Tax 19,56,32,221 52,55,55,016
Depreciation 19,45,31,397 10,79,20,346
Interest 19,21,54,105 25,60,81,421
Profit before tax (19,10,53,281) 16,15,53,249
Provision for Taxation

- Current and deferred Tax (44,81,829) 5,45,36,150




- Fringe Benefit Tax Nil Nil
Profit for the year after tax (18,65,71,452) 10,70,17,099
Dividend

Considering the losses incurred by the Company during the financial year 2014-15, your Directors
regret their inability to recommend any dividend.

Reserves

In view of the losses incurred by the Company this year, no amount has been transferred to the
General Reserve.

Operations and State of Company’s Affairs

Operations

The Company has incurred a loss of Rs. 18,65,71,452 during the year under report. The prime reason for the
Company recording a loss in the financial year 2014-15 has been slowdown in the retail segment whereby the
sales target for the year could not be met (Actual net sales for the year was Rs.460 crores vis-a-vis budgeted
sales of Rs.585 crores). The shortfall in the sales along with a growth in the fixed overheads contributed to a
major hit on the bottom line. Additionally, the Company had to run discount schemes for a major part of the last
quarter of the fiscal to liquidate the stocks already piled up in view of the higher budgeted sales. During the year
the Company had also opened 25 new retail outlets which were yet achieve break even in the first year of their
operation which further affected the profit margins. The gold jewelry business too, was adversely affected since
the yellow metal recorded lots of price fluctuation. Particularly towards the year end and thereafter gold price
witnessed a steep crash and your management thought it prudent to value the stock at ‘marked to market' price
thereby taking a valuation loss in its financial statements. Further, the new Companies Act, 2013 provided for
new rates of depreciation to be charged on the fixed assets which resulted in an additional depreciation charge of
Rs. 8.50 crores. All these factors together brought down the overall profit margins significantly and resulted in a
loss (after taxes) of Rs.18.66 crores as aforesaid.

Your Company is taking various steps for reduction of cost which would help the Company in increasing the profit
margin. Also the Company is trying to fully utilize the capacity of the Kasba and Panpur Factory. Your Company
~ is also continuing its existing system of performance linked pay to its senior employees thereby increasing
efficiency of the senior management.




Manufacturing

During the year under report, 53.04 lakh pairs of footwear have been produced in Panpur Factory as against
28.10 lakh pairs in the last financial year, resulting an overall productive growth of 124% considering both the
Factories. During the year, various new footwear items were introduced in PVC/DIP, Stuck-on and Hawaii (both
Premium and Fabricated) categories. China Town Factory has been shifted and merged with Kasba Factory,
resulting in substantial savings of cost. The Company has opened factory discounted outlet(s) to sale out the
factory second products at discounted price.

Supply Chain Management

Your Company has taken various steps in optimizing its inventory control through reducing its old footwear and
accessories line, considering present market trend and demand by way of various strategies like Salesman
incentive, Discount, extra margin to dealers etc. for slow/non-moving stocks. This has paved the way to reduce
the old Inventories of the Company and would improve the operations of the Company in the succeeding years.

Purchase has been centralized at Bantala, Kasba and Delhi distribution Centres. The Company has taken steps
to standardise its supply chain through introduction of more structured and organised Suppliers, who are capable
of making supply within reasonable lead time. Your Company has relocated its Sreerampore Distribution Centre
to Kasba without affecting other operations and the same resulted in space saving and remarkable variable cost
savings. Your Company has taken various steps to reduce the Transit Time and Transit Loss like pilferage
through incorporating DMR (Discrepancy Management Register) and GCN (Goods Consignment Notes) details
through systems. Your Company has improved customer satisfaction through various measures including
enhanced Quality Control.

Brand and Marketing

During the year 2014- 15, there has been a considerable focus on Brand Marketing with respect to the consumer
space. Consumer schemes along with brand campaigns have helped the Company to reach out to the valued
customers. In the digital market places, Flipkart and Snapdeal have further helped the Company to expand the
geographies to customers beyond the reach of our retail presence. In the distribution sector, the Company has
also initiated a process to make the presence felt and manifest again through our channel partners, providing
them Sign boards and collaterals from the brand.

Finance

During the year 2014-15 the Finance team of your company along with one reputed external organization
initiated a drive for effective and efficient cost management process across the Company and the targeted and
measurable benefits in some cases have already been achieved and rest are in the process of completion.

With infusion of funds in the form of private equity, the Company was able to manage its working capital cycle
more efficiently and brought down its receivable and payables level significantly. Further, with improved liquidity
and better leveraging ratios, the external credit rating of the Company as assessed by CARE and ICRA was
revised from BBB+ for Long term bank facilities and A3+ for short term bank facilities to A- and A2+ respectively.
With an improvement in external credit rating, the Company was able to negotiate a downward revision of
interest rates charged by banks to the tune of 50-75 basis points.



Internal Audit & Internal Control Systems

The Internal Audit Department of your Company has emphasized on strengthening controls mainly on Financial
and Operational functions with the focus to mitigate the risk of asset and revenue loss. This initiative has been
reflected as an integral part of every audit tasks on regular basis. Internal audit team is also keeping a close
watch on internal control system over high risk assets in retail industry namely cash and inventory and critical
operations like logistics, offered schemes and productions etc. to safeguard the assets of the Company.,

Your Company has an adequate system of internal control procedures which is commensurate with the size and
nature of business. All the assets are safeguarded, protected against loss and all transactions are authorized,
recorded and reported correctly. The internal control systems of the Company are monitored and evaluated by
internal auditors and their audit reports / observations are periodically reviewed by the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors.

Human Resource Management

Employees are the most valuable assets of your Company. Your Company believes in the quality and level of
service of its employees extended towards the customers. The homely culture and reputation of your Company
enables to recruit and retain the good talents across states. The talent pool is being created by recruiling from
reputed colleges/universities/management institutes.

The Company in partnership with the skill developments institutes viz. IndiaCan Education, Save the Children,
Dr. Reddy's Foundation, B-Able etc. has employed BPL youths during the year.

The employees receive competitive salaries and benefits through performance linked compensation programmes
that links compensation to individual performance, as well as the Company's performance.

Your Company is focused on taking specific initiatives to recruit, retain and develop the highest quality of people
regardless of race, gender, religion, age, culture, sexual orientation or background. In addition it continues to
focus on enhancing service excellence delivery skills and capabilities.

Share Capital

The Company in its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting dated 4th June, 2014 has passed a special resolution for
consclidation in the face value of the Equity Shares of the Company, whereby, the Authorised Share Capital of
the Company is consclidated from 240,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2.50/- each to 60,000,000 Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- each and the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up capital is consolidated from 48,540,952 Equity Shares of
Rs. 2.50/- each to 12,135,238 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.

The Company has converted 7,74,63,840 (Seven Crore Seventy Four Lacs Sixty Three Thousand Eight Hundred
and Forty) zero coupon Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (Unsecured) of Rs. 10 each issued to Reliance
Alternative Investment Fund- Private Equity Scheme-1 by issuance of 51,63,293 number of equity shares of Rs
10 each to the said fund at a conversion premium of Rs.140.03 per share during the year under report.

Change(s) in the nature of the business

There has been no change(s) of business of the Company or in the nature of business carried on by the
Company during the financial year under review.



Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial
statements relate and the date of the report

No material changes and commitments affecting the Financial position of the Company have occurred
between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date on
which this Report has been signed.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators/courts/tribunals impacting the going
concern status and the Company’s operations in future

During the year under review, no significant and material orders have been passed by the regulators / courts /
tribunals that may impact the going concern status and the operations of the Company in future.

Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate companies

The Company does not have any subsidiary / associate / joint venture company for the year ended
31st March 2015.

Deposits

During the year under review the Company has not accepted any depaosit from public within the
meaning of chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility are applicable
to the Company and the Company has devised a Policy in this regard. The Board of Directors of the
Company has constituted CSR Committee vide its meeting held on 11" March 2014 and
subsequently reconstituted the committee on 23rd May 2015. The present constitution of the
committee is as follows:

Sl. No. Name Category Designation
1. Prof. AN. Sadhu Independent Director Chairman

2. Mr. Siddhartha Roy Burman Whole Time Director Member

3. Ms. Tanusree Roy Burman Whole Time Director Member

4. Mr. Rahul Manek Non-Executive Director Member

5. Mr, Rubin Chheda Non-Executive Director Member

6. Mr. Abhijit Dan® CS & Head-Legal Secretary

A Mr. Abhijit Dan has been appointed as Secretary to the Committee w.e.f. 23™ May 2015 in place of
Mr. Joydev Sengupta who has resigned from the Company as CS & Head Legal w.e.f.31" March 2015

However, considering the current years’ operations your Company has not been able to spend any
fund on account of the CSR Activity during the year. The Company wishes to inform the members
that it is well aware of its responsibility towards fulfilling its social responsibility and is hopeful that it
will engage itself into the CSR Activity in the years to come.

Business Risk Management

Your Company monitors its major risks and concerns at regular intervals through effective Internal
Control System. During the year, your Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee
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which has been entrusted, inter alia, with the responsibility of overseeing and approving the
Company’s risk management framework. The risk management framework works at various levels
across the organization. The Company has a robust Organizational structure for managing and
reporting on risks. The Risk Management Committee is also empowered to review and recommend
to the Board the modifications to the Risk Management Policy.

Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy

In order to ensure that the activities of the Company and its employees are conducted in a fair and
transparent manner by adoption of highest standard of professionalism, honesty, integrity and
ethical behavior the Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy during the year under report.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

At the 33rd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29th September, 2014 the Company
has appointed existing Independent Directors, viz. Dr. Indra Nath Chatterjee, Prof. Amar Nath Sadhu
and Prof. Ashoke Kumar Dutta as Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 for a period
of 5 consecutive years from the conclusion of the 33rd Annual General Meeting. The said Directors
are not liable to retire by rotation.

All Independent Directors have given the declaration that they meet the criteria of Independence as
laid down under section 149 (6) of the Companies Act in accordance with the provision of
Companies Act, 2013. Ms. Tanusree Roy Burman,Whole Time Director will retire by rotation and
being eligible offers herself for re-appointment.

Mr. Siddhartha Roy Burman, Chairman & Managing Director and Ms. Ishani Ray, CFO have been
designated as Wholetime Key Managerial Personnel in terms of Section 203 of the Companies Act,
2013 during the year under report. Mr. Joydev Sengupta, Company Secretary & Head Legal has
resigned from the service of the Company w.e.f. 31st March 2015. Mr. Abhijit Dan has been
appointed as Company Secretary & Head —Legal w.e.f. 4th May 2015 in terms of Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Meetingg

For the Financial Year 2014-15, five meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 4th June
2014, 31st July 2014, 1st August 2014, 14th November 2014 and 11th March 2015.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The present Composition of the Audit Committee is as under:

SI. No. Name Category Designation
1. Prof. A.N. Sadhu Independent Director Chairman
2. Dr. Indra Nath Chatterjee Independent Director Member

3. Prof. Ashoke Kr. Dutta Independent Director Member

4, Mr. Rahul Manek Non-Executive Director Member

5. Mr. Rubin Chheda Non-Executive Director Member

B. Mr. Abhijit Dan? CS & Head-Legal Secretary
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A Mr. Abhijit Dan has been appointed as Secretary to the Committee w.e.f. 23" May 2015 in place of
Mr. Joydev Sengupta who has resigned from the Company as Company Secretary & Head Legal
w.e.f. 31* March 2015.

Extract of Annual Return

The extract of the Annual return in the format MGT-9 for the Financial Year 2014-2015 has been
enclosed with this report as Annexure “ A ",

Particulars of contracts and arrangement with Related Parties

During the year under report all the Transactions with the Related Parties as defined in the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder were in the ordinary course of business and on
Arm’s Length basis. No Material Related Party Transactions, i.e. transactions exceeding ten percent
of the annual turnover as per the last audited financial statements, were entered during the year by
your Company. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions to be provided under
section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, in Form AOC — 2 is not applicable.

Secretarial Auditor

The Board has appointed Ms. BKG & Company, Practicing Company Secretary to conduct the
Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 2014-2015. The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year
ended March 31*, 2015 is annexed herewith, marked as Annexure-“ B” to this report. The Secretarial
Audit Repart does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Directors Responsibility Statement

In terms of provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31* March
2015, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March 2015 and of the loss of
the Company for the year ended on that date;

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the praovisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
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e) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively during the financial year ended 31* March 2015

Statutory Auditor and Auditors’ Report

Ms. Deloitte, Haskins & Sells (Firm Registration No-302009E, Chartered Accountants) have been
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 29" September, 2014 for a period of 3 years till the Financial Year 2017-2018 subject to
ratification by members at every consequent Annual General meeting. They have confirmed their
eligibility to the effect that ratification for their appointment, if made, would be within the
prescribed limits mentioned in the Act and they are not disqualified for such ratification.

The Members are requested to ratify the appointment of the Statutory Auditors as aforesaid and fix
their remuneration.

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.
Cost Auditor

Although the Company is not coming under the purview of compulsory cost audit as per the
Companies Act, 2013 your Company has continued with the service of the Cost Auditor for the
Financial Year 2014-2015 and for the succeeding Financial Year.

Particulars of Loans, Investments, Guarantees etc.

In the Financial Year 2014-15, the Company has not made any investment, have not given any loans,
have not provided any guarantees, have not provided any security in connection with any loan, have
not acquired securities by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise in excess of the thresholds
provided in Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

A) Conservation of energy

Energy conservation is an ongoing process in the Company through investments in the latest energy
efficient technologies to conserve energy at all locations, plants and sites of the Company. As a part
of your Company’s endeavor towards conservation of energy and prevention of energy wastage,
constant steps are taken in order to conserve energy on an ongoing basis. In Manufacturing Unit at
Panpur, the Factory Building has been designed by using Energy Conservation methods like use of
Translucent Roofing Sheet which permit natural light inside the premises thereby reducing the need
of electrical lights to a negligible level during daytime, use of Turbo Vents and Ridge Vents and latest
insulating materials for the roof and side panels for reducing the internal heat and thus keeping the
temperature at a moderate level even during peak summer without use of air-conditioning. During
the year under review, your Company has taken adeguate measures to optimize the consumption of
electricity by reducing operational losses as much as possible. Also through installation of LED Lights
at various locations your Company has saved a considerable expenditure towards consumption of
Electricity during the year under report. Capital Investment of Rs. 74.40 lakhs has been made during
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the year for purchase of LED Lights for the purpose of energy conservation / savings. Presently your
Company is not using any alternate source of energy.

(B) Technology absorption

No specific technology was absorbed, adapted or innovated and no separate expenditure was
incurred on Research and Development during the year under report. No technology was imported
during last four years. However, your Company, which is present in the retail segment, understands
the importance of continuous improvement of the product line and development initiatives and thus
continued to carry out various design development and improvement activities not only to keep
itself abreast with the market but also to stay ahead of the times.

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The details of foreign earnings and outgo are as follows:

Amount in Rs.
Sl. Particulars 2014-15

(a) | Value of import on CIF basis

Raw material, components & spare parts 4,26,79,704

Finished footwear 18,17,41, 367

Capital Goods - including Moulds 1,25,91,771
(b) | Foreign exchange Earning 2,50,47,936
(c) | Foreign exchange outgo 23,39,646
(d) | Others Nil

Particulars of Employees and related disclosures

Information required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has been enclosed
with this report as Annexure “C".

Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment of women at work place (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013

No case relating to the above has been filed during the year under report.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

A Nomination and Remuneration Policy has been formulated pursuant to the provisions of Section
178 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereto stating therein
. the Company’s policy on Directors' appointment and remuneration by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.



Fraud Reporting

During the year under review, no fraud has been reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Acknowledgement

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and cooperation
received from the financial institution, banks, government authorities, customers, vendors and
members during the year under review. Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense
of appreciation for the committed service by the executives, staffs and workers of the Company.

For on behalf of the Board of Directors Place: Kolkata

Date: 31% July, 2015

Siddhartha Roy Burman

(Chairman and Managing Director)



Annexure “A”

Form No.

MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 315t March, 2015

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Registration and other details:

i CIN U19129WB1981PLC034337
i Registration Date 03/12/1981
il Name of the Company Khadim India Limited

iv Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Company/ Limited by Shares
v Address of the registered office and contact ‘Kankaria Estate", & floor, 6 Little Russell Street,
details Kolkata-700071,
Tel. No. +91-33-40090501
Fax. No. +31-33- 40090500
Vi Whether listed company No
vii Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar | Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd,

and Transfer Agent, if any

59C, Chowringhee Road,3rd Floor,Kolkata = 700020,
Tel: 033 - 2289 0540, Telefax:033 -2289 0539,
Email: kolkata@linkintime.co.in

Il. Principal business activities of the company: Footwear Industry-Retailing and Direct sales

Business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover* of the company are:-

SI. No Name and Description of main products / | NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
services Product/ service company

1 Footwear — Retail 477113 44%

2 Footwear — Wholesale 46413 45%

lll. Particulars of holding, subsidiary and associate companies

S. | Name and Address of CIN/GLN Holding/ % of shares Applicable
NO | The company Subsidiary/ held section
Associate
Knightsville Private Ltd. U45209WB2005PTC103948 | Holding 50.51% 2 (46)




IV. Share holding pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i)

Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of
the year

%
Change
during
the year

Demat Physical Total

% of
Total
Share

Demat Physical Total

% of
Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual
{HUF

8692836 | 8692836

17.90

2173209 | 2173209

12.56

-0.75

b) Central Govt

c) State
Gov(s)

d) Bodies
Corp.

= 37092916 | 37092916

76.42

9273229 | 9273229

53.60

0.75

e) Banks / Fl

f)Any Other

Sub-total (A)
(1):-

- 45785752 | 45785752

94.33

11446438 | 11446438

66.17

-0.75

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs -
Individuals

b) Other
Individuals

c) Bodies
Corp.

d) Banks / FI

eJAny Other

Sub-total (A)
(2):

Total
shareholding
of Promoter
(A)=
(A)(1)+(A)2)

45785752 | 45785752

94.33

11446438 | 11446438

66.17

-0.75

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions




a) Mutual
Funds

b) Banks / F|

c) Central Govt

d) State
Govi(s)

e) Venture
Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flis

h)Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

))Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2.Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Carp.

27556200

2755200

5.67

5852093

5852093

33.83

i) Indian

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal

share capital
upto

Z 1 lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of ¥ 1
lakh

c) Others

(specify)
Sub-total

(B)2):-

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+

2755200

2995200

8.17

5852093

5852093

33.83




(B)(2)

C. Shares held
by Custodian

for GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total 2755200 | 45785752 | 48540952 | 100 | 5852093 | 11446438 | 17298531 | 100 -62.21
(A+B+C)
ii) Shareholding of Promoters:
SI | Shareholder's | Shareholding at the beginning of | Shareholding at the end of the
No. | Name the year year
No. of % of %of Shares | No. of % of %of Shares | %
Shares total Pledged / Shares total Pledged/ | change
Shares encumbered Shares | encumbere | in
of the to total of the d share
company | shares compan | to total holding
y shares during
the
year
1 Mr.
Siddhartha 8692596 | 17.93 2173149 | 1256 -0.75
Roy Burman
2 Ms. Tanusree | 240 €0 0.75
Roy Burman
3 Knightsville 3495131 | 72.0038 8737829 | 50.51 - -0.75
Pvt. Ltd. 6
4 Khadim 1211800 | 2.49 302950 17.51 -0.75
Development
Co. Pvt. Ltd.
5 Moviewallah | 689800 | 1.42 172450 0.99 -0.75
Communicati
ons Pvt. Ltd
6 Photo 100000 | 0.21 25000 0.14 - -0.75
Imaging Pvt.
Ltd.
7 Tetenal 140000 | 0.28 35000 0.20 0.75
Photocheme
Pvt. Ltd.




ii)

Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. Particulars Date of Shareholding at the Cumulative  Shareholding
No. Change beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the | shares shares of the
company company
8692596 | 17.93
1 Mr. Siddhartha Roy
Burman
4-6-2014 2173149 12.56
2 Ms. Tanusree Roy 240
Burman
4-6-2014 60
3 Knightsville Pvt. Ltd. 34951316 | 72.00
4-6-2014 8737829 50.51
4 Khadim Development 1211800 247
Co. Pvt. Ltd.
4-6-2014 302950 17.51
5 Moviewallah 689800 1.42
Communications Pvt.
Ltd.
4-68-2014 172450 0.99
6, Photo Imaging Pvt. Ltd. 100000 0.21
4-6-2014 25000 0.14
T Tetenal Photocheme 140000 0.29
Pvt. Ltd.
4-6-2014 35000 0.20




iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs):
Sl. | Particulars Date of | Shareholding at the | Cumulative
No. Change beginning of the year | Shareholding during the
year
For Each of No. of % of No. of % of total
the Top 10 shares total shares shares  of
Shareholders shares the
of the company
compan
y
1 Reliance Alternative Investments 2755200 | 5.67
Fund-Private Equity Scheme-|
4-6-2014 688800 [ 5.67
1-8-2014 5852003 | 33.83
V) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sl Particulars Date of Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. Change beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the | shares shares of the
company company
8692596 | 17.93
1 Mr. Siddhartha Roy
Burman
4-6-2014 . - 2173149 12.56
2 Ms. Tanusree Roy - 240 0.0005 - -
Burman
4-6-2014 - 60




V. Indebtedness

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payments

Amount in Rs.
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the
beginning of
the financial year

i) Principal Amount

1,26,94,75,717

1,26,94,76,717

i) Interest due but | 54,65,033 - - 54,65,033
not paid

lii)Interest  accrued | 4,18,107 . 418,107
but not due

Total (i+ii+iii) 1,27,63,58,857 . 1,27,53,58,857
Change in

Indebtedness

during

the financial year

« Addition 27,09.71,306 27.09,71,3086
* Reduction 20,94,83,794 20,94,83,794
Net Change 6,14,87,512 - - 6,14,87,512
Indebtedness at the

end of the financial

year

i} Principal Amount

1,33.07,27,024

1,33,07,27,024

ii) Interest due.but 97,82,738 - . 57,82,738
not paid
iii) Interest accrued | 3,36,607 - . 3,368,607

but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

1,33,68,46,369

1,33,68,46,369




VI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Amount in Rs.

Sl.

no.

[ Particulars of Remuneration

Name of the Director

Mr. Siddhartha
Roy Burman

Ms. Tanusree
Roy Burman

Total Amount

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

1,83,26,700

21,91,147

20517847

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)Income-tax Act,
1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)

Income-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option

3 Sweat Equity

4, Commission
- as % of profit
- Others, specify...

5. Others, please specify

Total (A)

1,83,26,700

21,91,147 20517847

Ceiling as per the Act- Rs 1.20 Crores as per Section-Il of Part-Il of Schedule-V in absence of profit.

B. Remuneration to other directors: Amount in Rs.
S.n | Particulars of remuneration | Name of Total
0 directors
1 Independent director Dr. LN. Prof. AK. Prof. AN.
Chatterjee Dutta Sadhu
a. Fee for attending board / 170000 110000 - 280000
committee meetings
b. Commission -
c Others, please specify - -
Total (1) 170000 110000 - 280000
2 Other Non-Executive Rahul Manek Rubin Chheda
Directors
a, Fee for attending board /| - . -
committee meetings
b. Commission - - -
G Others, please specify - . 5
Total (2) - - -
Total (B)=(1+2) 170000 110000 - 280000




Total Managerial
Remuneration

‘ Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Sitting Fee paid to Non-Executive Director does not form a part of
the Total Managerial Remuneration

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or

Manager:
Amount in Rs.
Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Joydev Ishani Ray, CFO
ho. Sengupta, CS & Total amount
Head-Legal *
1. | Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in | 23,84,740 41,76,872 65,61,612
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)Income-tax
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961
2. | Stock Option
3. | Sweat Equity
4. | Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5. | Others, please specify
Total (A) 23,84,740 4176872 6561,612
* Resigned w.e.f. 315t March 2015
VIi. Penalties / punishment/ compounding of offences
Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
the Description Penalty / [RD/ if any
Companies Punishment/ NCLT/ (give Details)
Act Compounding | COURT]
fees imposed
A. Company
Penalty None
Punishment
Compounding
B. Directors
Penalty None
Punishment
Compounding
C. Other officers in default
Penalty None
Punishment
Compounding
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Phone : 22108760, 98301-45662
Email- binodes@rediffmail.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2015.

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9
of the Companies Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
6 Little Russell Street,
Kolkata-700071.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Khadim India Ltd. (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the M/s. Khadim India Ltd. books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by
the ‘Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31/03/2015 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

we have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Khadim India Ltd. (“the Company") for the financial year ended on 31/03/2015
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
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Company Secretaries

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder:
(The shares of the Company are not listed on Stock Exchange, hence, not
applicable).

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye—léws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(v) The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the Company, as the shares are not
listed on any Stock Exchange.

(vi) The company is mainly engaged in the business of Footwear Industry and on examination of
the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof and as confirmed by the
management, we belief that no specific law applicable to the Footwear Industries in India.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

» Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (Not

notified hence not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

» The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Calcutta Stock Exchange; (The
shares of the Company are not listed on Stock Exchange, hence, not applicable).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

During the period, the provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility was applicable to the
Company and accordingly, the Company has formed a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
but no amount has been spent by the company towards Corporate Social Responsibility activities
and as explained by management that as the Campany has not performed as it was expected but
hopeful to spend towards Corporate Social Responsibility activities in the coming year.
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We further report that

» The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. '

» Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agehda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

» All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the
Board, as the case may be.

» Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate

with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that as per our review during the audit period that the company has had the
following specific events:

1. The Company has altered its Clause V of Memorandum of Association at the Extra
Ordinary General Meeting held on 4" June, 2014 for Consolidation of 24,00,00,000 Equity
Shares of Rs. 2.50 each to 6,00,00,0000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each and consequent to
consolidation of authorised capital of the company, the paid up capital has also been
consolidated from 4,85,40,952 equity shares of Rs. 2.50/- each to , 1,21,35,238 equity
shares of Rs. 10/- each.

2. The company has altered its Article of Association at Annual General Meeting held on 29"
September, 2014 for insertion of a new sub Article 13 of Article 40 i.e. “The Position of the
chairman and that of the Managing Director shall be held by a single individual who shall be
designated as the Chairman and Managing Director” after the existing Sub Article(12) of
Article 40 of Aﬁicle of Association of the company.
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3. The Company has issued 7,74,63,840 Zero Coupon Compulserily Convertible (Unsecured)
Debentures (“CCDs") at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 20" September, 2013
to Reliance Alternative Investments Fund-Private Equity Scheme-l which has to be
converted into Equity Shares on or before 30" September, 2014 has been converted into
51,63,293 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 140.03 each equity shares at
its Board meeting held on 1* August, 2014.

For BKG & COMPANY

Company Secretaries

JFisel (g

R N o N

4 \\ (BINOD KUMAR GUPTA)
R W Partner
\ Vi s ~ (ACS-12965, C. P. No.- 3242)
Place : Kolkata W

Date : 31/07/2015 R

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms
an integral part of this report.
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. 11A, Esplanade East, 1°t Floor
Company Secretaries Kolkata — 700069.

Phone : 22108760, 98301-45662
Email- binodes@rediffmail.com

‘Annexure A’

To,

The Members,
Khadim India Limited
6 Little Russell Street,
Kolkata-700071

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe
that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as lto the future viability of the Company nor

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For BK G & COMPANY

e o R Company Secretaries
i, N ) ‘ "
\ war ) (BINOD KUMAR GUPTA)

13_ Ny o Partner

\"v.\j-\-.-:{?' /4” ’/;’ (ACS-12965, C. P. No.- 3242)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 31/07/2015



Annexure -C

Information pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies

(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

NAME AGE | DESIGNATION | REMUNERATION NATURE OF QUALIFICATION DATE OF LAST SHARE RELATION
RECEIVED EMPLOYMENT | & EXPERIENCE | COMMENCEMENT | EMPLOYMENT | HOLDING WITH
(Rs.) OF EMPLOYMENT HELD IN THE OTHER
COMPANY | DIRECTORS
Mr. 54 Chairman & 1,83,26,700 Contractual B.com with 32 25/09/1990 NA 21,73,149 | Husband of
Siddhartha Managing years of Mrs.
Roy Burman Director experience Tanusree
Roy
Burman
(whole
Time

Director)
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Chartered Accountants

Block - EP & GP, Sector - V
Salt Lake Electronics Complex
Kolkata - 700 091

India

Tel. : +91 (33) 6612 1000
Fax : +91(33) 6612 1001

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF KHADIM INDIA LIMTED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KHADIM INDIA LIMITED ("the

Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the

financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31¥ March, 2015, and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

(f

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper. books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March, 2015
taken ou record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31%
March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements in accordance with the generally accepted accounting practice —
also refer Note 13.1 and Note 31 to the financial statements.
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

™
\ KOLKATA, 31 July, 2015

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 302009E

A. Bhattacharya
Partner
(Membership No. 054110)



P—— oy -
1 S '

y

Deloitte
Haskins & Sells

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
report of even date)

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business/activities/results during the year, clauses (v)
and (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company. In respect of other clauses, we
report as under:

(1) In respect of its fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b)  The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for
physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(ii) In respect of its inventories:

(a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals.

(b)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the Management were
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its
business.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained proper records of its inventories and no material discrepancies
were noticed on physical verification,

(ili)  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

' (iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate
internal control systems commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its
business for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods. During the
course of our audit, we have not observed any major weaknesses in such internal control system.
The Company does not have any sale of services during the year.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a)  The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth

Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other

Qf material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.
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(b)  There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at
31% March, 2015 for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

(c) Details of dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Value Added Tax and Cess which have not been deposited as on 31
March, 2015 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of Statute Nature of Forum where Dispute is Period to Amount
Dues Pending which the Involved
Amount (Rs,)
| Relates
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax | Deputy Commissioner of | 2007-08 1,027,886
1961 Income Tax
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax | Income Tax  Appellate 2008-09 183,556
1961 Tribunal
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax | Commissioner of Income 2011-12 2,258,700
1961 Tax (Appeal)
West Bengal Value | Value West Bengal Commercial 2010-11 1,722,840
| Added Tax Act, 2003 | Added Tax | Taxes Appellate &
Revisional Board
West Bengal Value | Value West  Bengal Taxation 2011-12 946,675
Added Tax Act, 2003 | Added Tax Tribunal
West Bengal Value | Value Additional Commissioner 2011-12 2,555,408
Added Tax Act, 2003 | Added Tax of Commercial Tax
| (Appeal)
Bihar Value Added | Value Joint Commissioner of | 2012-13 814,973
Tax Act, 2005 Added Tax | Commercial Tax (Appeal)
Bihar Value Added | Value Joint Commissioner of | 2013-14 744,008
Tax Act, 2005 Added Tax | Commercial Tax (Appeal)
Bihar Value Added | Value Joint  Commissioner of 2014-15 1,381,944
| Tax Act, 2005 Added Tax Commercial Tax (Appeal) }
| Central Sales Tax | Central West Bengal Commercial 2010-11 914,272 .
Act, 1956 Sales Tax Taxes Appellate & [
Revisional Board |
Central Sales Tax | Central Additional Commissioner 2011-12 1,547,466
Act, 1956 Sales Tax of Commercial Tax
(Appeal)
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax | Assistant Commissioner of | 2005-06 and 151,000
Service Tax 2006-07
Central Excise Act, | Excise Duty | Customs, Excise, Service 2004 1o 1,062,800
1944 Tax Appellate Tribunal 2007
Central Excise Act, | Excise Duty | Customs, Excise, Service 2007-08 162,832
1944 Tax Appellate Tribunal

(d) There are no amounts that are due to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and
Rules made thereunder.

N
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

KOLKATA, 31 July, 2015

The Company does not have accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and the
Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
the repayment of dues to any financial institutions, banks or to debenture holders during the

year,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given
guarantees for loans taken by others from banks and financial institutions.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which they were
obtained.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 302009/E)

¢
A. Bhattacharya

Partner
(Membership No. 054110)
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus

Non- Current Liabllities

{a) Long - Term Borrowings

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Met)
{c) Other Long - Term Liabilities
id) Long - Term Provisions

Current Liabilities

1a) Short - Term Borrowings
(b) Trade Payables

(c) Cther Current Liabilities
{d) Short - Tarm Provisions

ASSETS

Non - Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
{I) Tangible Assets
(i) Infangible Assets
(i) Capital Work - In - Progress
(v} Intangible assets under development
(b) Non - Current Investment
(c) Long - Term Loans and Advances
{d) Other non-current assets

Current Assets

{a) Inventories

(b) Trade Receivables

{c) Cash and Bank Balances

(d) Short Term Loans and Advances
(g) Other Current Assets

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements.

In terms of our Report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

e
A. Bhattacharya

Partner

Place: Kolkata
Date: 31st July 20156

Note No. As at 31 March As at 31 March
' 2015 2014
3 17,29,85,310 12,13,52,380
4 1,11,85,79,247 61,68,07,509
5 16,86,36,000 29,06,88,350
6 7,01,59,644 9,23,96,173
T 7.74,50,341 8,43,13,209
8 82,94,154 1.74.79.611
9 1,05,04,84,667 77,97,59, 566
10 §8,17,41,517 97,53,10,097
11 18,83,94,698 1,03,12,24,123
12 1,82,94159 2,11,85 067
Total 3,45,60,29,737 4,01,05,16,085
13 1,50,59,86,196 1,681,18,00,609
14 1,13,19,016 1,29,97,184
. 51,60,427 2,17,40 519
1,59,92,568 36,63,689
15 4,82,451 482,451
16 23,31,17,978 18,17 47 092
17 90,26,000 -
18 1,13,77,82,706 1,14,04 77 418
19 24,09,02,784 570852425
20 12,44,05,316 31,4547,213
21 11,09,94,673 8,86,03,561
22 6,08,59,622 6,36,04,024
Total 3,45,60,29,737 4,01,06,16,085

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

‘___M ‘et U H

Siddhartha Roy Burman
Chalrman & Managing Director

o
Tanusree Roy Burman
Wholetime Director

shani Ray ¢
Chief Financial Officer

== ’Q/V‘HI“j ”"’IDW,/

Abhijit Dan
Company Secretary & Head - Legal

posecrim
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Date: 31st July 2015

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2015

{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Revenus from Operations (Gross)
Less: Excise Duty
Revenue from Operations (Net)

Other Income
Total Revenue (| +11)

Expenses :

Cost of Materials Consumed

Purchase of Stock-In-Trade

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Work- In-Progress and Stock-In-Trade

Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Other Expenses

Total expanses
Profit/(Loss) before tax (Il - 1V)

Tax expenses
(1) Current fax expense

(2) (Less) MAT credit entitlement for earlier year
(3) Short provision for tax relating o prior years
(4) Net current tax expense
(5) Deferred tax

Net tax expense

Profit/(Loss) for the year (V - VI )

Earnings per equity share : [Nominal Value per Share Rs.10/-
(Previous year Rs 2.50/-)]

(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements.
In terms of our Report attached

For Deloltte Haskins & Sells
Chartered untants

A. Bhdttacharya
Partner

Place: Kolkata

For the year For the year
Note No. ended 31 March ended 31 March
2015 2014
23 4,61,84,00,856 4,80,77,49,414
1,68,25,430 2;63,50,512
4,60,15,75,526 4,78,13,98,902
24 5,54,56,991 4,91,20,866
4,65,70,32,517 4,83,05,19,768
25 61,20,07,553 50,35,47,004
26 2,54,85,44,941 2,56,35,18,824
27 (3,68,59,920) 6,28,43,759
28 46,07,08,326 42,15,06,807
29 19,21,64,106 25,60,81 421
14.1 19,45,31,397 10,79,20,346
30 87,69,99,395 75,35,48,358
4,84,80,85,798 4,66,89,66,519
(19,10,53,281) 16,15,53,249
- 511,85 556
- (6,29,060)
6,33,542 10,689,007
6,33,542 5,16,25,503
(51,15,371) 29,10,647
(44,81,829) 5,45,36,150
(18,65,71,452) 10,70,17,099
34
(11.98) 8.82
(10.79) 7.20

For and on behalf of Board of Direclors

_(_,M ‘ol AR

Siddhartha Roy Burman
Chairman & Managing Director

A V&g LT

Tanusree Roy Burman
Wheletime Director

VO ?M
V shani Ray «
hief Financial Officer

NPA/MQ “Pan—"

Abhijit Dan
Company Secretary & Head - Legal
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2015
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

{Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net)

Interest Received

Dividend Income from Current Investments

Gain on Sale of Current Investments
Provision/(Reversal) for diminution in value of Long Term Investments
Liabilities/Provisions no longer required written back
Government grant received

Provision for slow moving inventories

Provision for doubtful debts, advances and other assets
Debts/Advances/Claims written off

Unrealised loss on restatement of debtors

Finance cost

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Adjustments for:

Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances and Other Assels
Inventories

Trade Payables, Other Liabilities and Provisions

Cash Generated from Operations

Payment of Direct Taxes

Cash paid to Minority Shareholders (Refer Note 33)

Net cash flow from Operating Activities

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Sale of Fixed Assets

(Increase)/Decrease in Margin Account
Investments in bank deposits under lien
Maturity of bank deposits under lien

Purchase of Current Investments

Sale of Current Investments

Dividend Income from Current Investments
Interest Received

Net Cash from/(used in) Investing Actvities

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Zero Coupon Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (Unsecured)
Net increase/(decrease) in working capital, demand loans and buyer's credit

Interest Paid

Repayment of Term Loans

Repayment of Vehicle Loan

Repayment of Unsecured loans
Dividends paid

Dividend tax paid

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of year

For the year
ended 31 March

For the year
ended 31 March

2015 2014

(19,10,53,281) 16,15,53,249
19,45,31,397 10,79,20,346
(1,82,44,441) 45,57,033
(70,43,946) (1,73,02,272)

. (10,08,586)
(69,76,842) (84,52,262)
& (1,38,378)

(69,84,206) (16,39,508)
(28,59,638) ;

% 3,22,00,000

22,36,224 32,67,397

3 1,78,935

(5,350) 3,18,952
19,21,54,106 25,60,81,421
15,57,54,023 53,75,36,327
29,12,25,740 (30,61,91,646)
26,94,712 5,90,56,296
(37,66,14,593) 11,73,74,263
7,30,59,882 40,77,75,240
(3,05,55,965) (4,18,16,692)
5 (6,00,00,000)

4,25,03,917 30,59,58,548

(14,42,40,552)

(8,08,09,473)

2,88,68,917 18,83,951
(99,519) 6,83,138
(5,99,63,719) (22,17,93,388)
27,30,04,460 -
(35,09,92,200) (26,00,00,000)
35,79,69,042 26,84 62,262
3 10,08,586

64,15,574 1,63,89,688
11,09,62,003 (27,41,85,236)
" 77,46,38,400
27,07,35,100 {14,19,31,228)
(19,19,17,901) (26,07,62,533)
(20,80,63,993) (16,97,49,717)
(14,19,801) (15,71,616)

(22,46,00,000)
(1,21,35,715)

- (20,62,384)
(13,06,66,595) (3,81,74,793)
2,27,99,325 (64,01,481)
1,08,90,580 1,72,92,061
3,36,89,905 1,08,90,580




KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2015
All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:

I The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under "Indirect Method" as set out in the Accounting Standard - 3 on
"Cash Flow Statement”.

Il Cash and Cash Equivalents represent cash and bank balances:
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and Cash Equivalents as above 3,36,89,905 1,08,90 580
Other Bank Balances 8,07,15,411 30,38,56,633
Cash and Bank Balances {Note 20} 12,44,05,316 31,4547,213

It During the year ended 31st March 2015, Zero Coupon Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (Unsecured) issued in 2013-14, of

face value Rs.10 has been converted into 5,163,293 Equity Shares of face value Rs.10 each at a conversion premium of

Rs.140.03 per share (Refer Note 3.5). This is a non-cash transaction.

IV Previous year's figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary, to conform current year's presentation

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements.

In terms of our Report attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
i it 3
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells r/v of ANAA
Chagtered Accountants Siddhartha Roy Burman
Chairman and Managing Director
% /5 cecorn-
Tansuree Roy Burm
Wholetime Directo
Place: Kolkata | i
Date: 31st July, 2015
/Jshani Ray

Chief Financial Officer

7
_A,@ Ly =D G
X~ Abhijit Dan
\\\ Company Secretary & Head - Legal




2.1

2:2

2.3
i}
"

1y
vk
%

Wi

i

2.5

La)
(b

?_"-l-

286

23

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED :
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
(A1l amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate information

hadim India Limited (the 'Company’) is an unlisted Public Limited Company engaged in the manufacturing / retall business of footwear, leather
accesseories and gold jewellery

The Company 1s incorparated and domiciled in Republic of India The address of ils Registered office is "Kankana Estate”, 5th Floor, &, Little Russell
Street, Kolkata - 700071,

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial siztements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAF)
1o comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and the relevant provisions of the Compames Act, 2013 {"the 2013 Act"),/ Companies Act, 1956 (“the 1956 Act"), as applicable. The financial
statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements are consistent wilh those followed in the previous year,

Al assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in
Schedule |l o the Companies Act 2013 Based on the nature of produsts and the time belween the acguisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained iis operating cycle as 12 maonths for the purpose of current [ non current
classification of assels and labilities

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of the Financial Statements in confermity with Generally Accepled Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires management o make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied amourts of Assets and Liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the dale of the
Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates
Any rewsion to the accounting estimates is recognised in the period in which the results are knownfmaterialisad.

Revenue Recognition

ltems of Income and expenditure are recognised an accrual basis

Sales and retall revenues, net of irade discounts and taxes but inclusive of excise duty are recognised on delivery of goods / merchandise 1o the dealers
/| customers

Revenue from displays and sponsorships are based on the peried for which the products / displays are sponsored or carried out.

|ncome on investments is accounted for when the right to receive the payment is established.

Revenue from services s recognised on rendering of services.

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets (comprising boih tangible and intangible tems) are stated al cost. The cost includes the original cost of asset, freight, taxes (Net of
CENVAT) and other incidental expenses relating to the acquisition and installation.

Cost of Leasehold rights of Land and Buildings, including incidental charges therto are amortised over the period of |ease.

inlangible assets (Computer Scftware) are stated at their cost less accumulated amortisation, An Intangible asset is recognised where it is probable that
the future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and where its costs can be reliably measured. The carrying value is
reviewed al each Balance Sheel date

Capital expenses. pending instaliation/commercial use and certain expenses which can be regarded as incidental and directly related to the project sel
up are transferred to Capital Work-in-Progress  These expenses are aliocated to fixed assels in the year of installation/commencement of commercial
usage

Expenditure on software development eligible for capitalisation are carned as Inmangible assets under development where such assets are not yel ready
for their intended use

Impairment loss, If any. is recognised wherever the carrying amount of fixed assets of a cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount | e net
selling price or value in use whichever is higher

Depreciation

Depreciation (including amortsation; is calculated in the following manner

Leasehold land 15 amortised over the pericd of lease.

Depreciation on other fixed assets has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule |1 to the Companies Act,
207173 except In respect of certain Furniture and fixtures in whose case life of the assels has been assessed at 6 years, based on technical advice, taking
into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the assel, the operating conditions of the asset, past histery of replacement, anticipated
technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.

Intangible assets are depreciated over the useful life (generally 3-5 years) on straight ling basis.

Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for net more than one year from the date, on which such investments are made, are
classified as current investments. All other invesiments are classified as long term investments. Current investments are carried at cost or fair-value
whichever is lower Long term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution is made to recognise a decline, other than temparary in
the value of the investments, such reduction being datermined and made for each investment individually

Inventories
Inventones are valued at cost or net realisable value, which ever is [ower. For this purpose, basis of ascertainment of cost is as under:
_ Raw-Materials and Packing Materials = At cost on First-in-First-out basis (FIFO).
. Siock in process. Raw material cost plus converstion cost upto the stage of completion.
Einished goods | Raw-matenal cost and ather related overhead cost inclusive of excise duty payable on clearance
- Trading goods = Al landed cost plus related overhead cost, determined on FIFOQ basis

Q_,
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015 4
(All amounts In Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Taxation

Current Tax in respect of taxable income is provided for the year based on applicable tax rates and laws. Deferred Tax is recognised subject to the
consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, on timing differences, being the difference between taxable income and accounting
income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent pericds and is measured using tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to re-assess
realisation. No deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses are recognised unless there is virtual certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income
tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax.. Accordingly, MAT is recognised
as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company

Employee Benefits

Short-term Employee benefits (i e benefits payable within one year) are recognised in the period in which the employee services are rendered,
Contributions to Provident Fund and other funds in accordance with the relevant plans / schemes (Defined Contribution Schemes) are charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.

Gratuity is maintained as a defined benefit retirement plan and contribution is made to Life Insurance Corporation Of India as per Company's
Scheme. Provision/ Write back, if any, is made on the basis of the present value of the liability as at the Balance Sheet date as determined by
actuarial valuation following projected unit credit method,

Leave encashment (Defined Benefit Scheme) is provided annually based on acluarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using
projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet date. Regular contributions are made to SBI Life Insurance Company Limited as per Company's
Scheme

Treatment of Prior Period. Extraordinary Items and Changes in Accounting Policies

Any material items. (other than those arising out of over / under-estimation of earlier years) arising as a result of error or omisssion in preparation of
earller years Financlal Statements are separately disclosed.

Any material gains/ losses, which arise from the events or transactions which are distinct from ordinary activities of the Company are separately
disclosed.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

Foreign Currency transactions are recorded at the prevalent exchange rates as on the dates of the respective transactions. Year-end monetary
assels/ liabilities, denominated in foreign currencies, are restated al the year-end rates. Non-monetary items of the Company are carried at historical
cost. Exchange differences arising on settlement / restatement of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities of the Company are recognised as
income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Cost, if any, that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 'Qualifying Assets' are capitalised as part of cost of such
assets. A 'Qualifying Asset' is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale, All other
borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases
Lease arrangements, where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor, are recognised as operating
leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding
retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settie the obiigation as at
the Balance Sheet date These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are
disclosed in the Notes. :

Derivative Transactions
Premium ! discount on forward exchange contracts are amortised over the periad of the contracts. Any profit or loss arising on canceliation or
renewal of such a forward exchange cantract is recognised as income or as expense In the period in which such cancellation or renewal is made.

Government Grants

Government Grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them and the
grants will be received, Grants related o depreciable fixed assels are treated as deferred income. The deferred income is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of assets to which the grant relates to. Such allocation to income
is made over the periods and in proporions in which depreciation on related assets is charged.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / {loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is compuled by dividing the profit / (loss) after
tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (nel of any
attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from
continuing ordinary operations, Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been
issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value
{i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The
number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splils and bonus shares, as appropriate.
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
(Al amounis in Rupees, uniess otherwise stated)

As at As at
4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS t 31 March 2015 | ‘ 34 March 2014 !

Capital Reserve - Amalgamation Reserve (Refer Note 4.1) 23,19,16,072

23,19,18,072

Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 3,81,43,681
Add: Amount credited on conversion of debentures into equity shares (Refer Nate 3.5) 72,30,05,470
Less . Amount utilised for Capital Reduction (Refer Note 33) -
Closing Balance 76,11,49,151

9,38,68,000

557,44 319
3,81,43,681

General Reserves
Opening Balance - 43,39,000
Less - Amount utilised for issue of Bonus shares - 43,39,000
Closing Balance [ - L

Surplus in statement of Profit and Loss

Opening Balance

Less: Depreciation on transition to Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 on tangible fixed assets with
il remaining useful life (Net of deferred tax Rs.1,71,21,158) (Refer Note 43)

34,67,47,756
3,46,62,280

59,94 48,797

Less | Amount utilised for issue of Bonus shares - 35,97,18,140
Profit/(Loss) for the year 18,65,71,452 10,70,17,099
Closing Balance 12,55,14,024 34,67,47,756

Total 1,11,85,79,247

4.4 Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation approved by the Hon'ble High Court at Calcutta with effect from 1st October, 2004, the surplus of nel
assets over the Equity Shares issued as purchase consideration has been treated as Capital Reserve.
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

3 SHARE CAPITAL As at As at
31 March 2015 | 31 March 2014
Authorised i
6,00,00,000 (31st March 2014 | 24 00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 2 50/- each) 60,00,00,000 60,00,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
Issued , Subscribed and Paid up
1,72,98,531 (31st March 2014 : 4,85 40,952 Equity Shares of Rs.2.50/- each) 17,29,85,310 12,13,52,380
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
Total 17,28,85,310 12,13,52,380
3.1 Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares
Particulars As at 31 March 201§ As at 31 March 2014
Number Amount Numb Amount
Balance as at the beginning of the year 4,85 40,952 12,13,52,380 1,21,35238 12,13.52,380
Consolidation of 4 shares of Rs.2 50/- each into 1 {3,64,05,714) - - -
share of Rs,10/- each [Refer Note 3.7]
Equity shares issued on conversion of debentures 51,863,293 5,16,32,930 - -
[Refer Note 3.5]
Bonus shares issued during the year [Refer Note 3.4] . . 3.64,05,714 36,40,57,140
Reduction of Share Capital [Refer Note 3.6] - - - 36,40.57 140
Balance as at the end of the year 1,72,98,531 17 Zﬂi85i31ﬂ 4,85,40,953 12 13!52!330
3.2 Detalls of Shares held by Shareholders holding more than & % of the aggregate shares In the Company
As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
No. of Shares | % of Holding No. of Shares | % of Holding
Name of Shareholder held® held
Knightsville Private Limited {Holding Company) 8737829 50.51 3,49,51,316 72.00
Siddhartha Roy Burman 21.73,149 12 86 86 92,556 17.91
Reliance Alternative Investmens Fund - PE Scheme | 58,562,093 3383 27,585,200 568
*Refer Note 3.7
3.3 Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Equity Shares
The Company has one class of Equity Shares having a face value of Rs.10/- per share, Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share
held. The Dividend proposed by the Board of Directors Is subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, except in case of Interim Dividend. In the event of liquidation, the Equity sharenolders are eligible 1o receive the remaining assels
of the Company after distribution of all Preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.
3.4 Equity Shares allotted as fully paid up bonus shares for the perlod of five years Immediately preceding 31st March 2015
The Company had issued bonus shares during the previous year ended 31st March 2014 to the shareholders in the ratio of 1:3 aggregating
3,84,05,714 number of equity shares of Rs.10 each as fully paid by utilising balance in General Reserve account and Surplus in Statement
of Profit and Loss Account 1o the extent of Rs. 4,339,000 and Rs 35,97,18,140 respectively.
3.5 Equity Shares sallotted as fully pald pursuant to contract without payment being recelved In cash during the period of five years
Immediately preceding 31st March 2015
During the year the Company has issued 51,63,293 Equity Shares of face value Rs.10 each al.a conversion premium of Rs.140.03 per
share (Refer Note 4) on conversion of Zero Goupon Compulsorily Convertible Debeantures (Unsecured) issued in 2013-14, as per the
formuia set out in, and each with rights, preferences and privileges contained in the Securities Subscription and Share Purchase Agreement
1.6 Reduction of Share Capital
During the previous year, pursuanl to a scheme of Arrangement for Reduction of Capital approved by the Hon'ble High Court at Calcutta on
14th March, 2014 the Company had reduced its Issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital from Rs 48,54,09,520 divided into
4,85,40,952 number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up to Rs. 12,13,62,380 divided into 4,85,40,952 equity shares of Rs.2.50
each. (Refer Note 33)
1.7 Consolidation in face value of Equity Shares
The Company in its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting dated 4tn June, 2014 has passad a special resolution for consolidation in the face
value of the Equity Shares of the Company, whereby, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company s consolidated from 24,00,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 2.50/- each to 6,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each and the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up capital is
consolidated from 4,85.40,852 Equity Shares of Rs, 2.50/- each to 1,21,35,238 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- &ach,
A=
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Nates to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
(Al amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

5 LONG TERM BORROWINGS

SECURED LOANS

Term Loans
From Banks
SBI Term Loan
SBI Cerporate Lean

[Refer Note 1 of §.1]
[Refer Note 2 of 5.1]
AXIS Bank Term Loan | [Refer Note 3 of 5.1]
AXIS Bank Term Loan |l [Refer Note 4 of 5.1]
SIDBI [Refer Note 5 of 5.1]

Other loans and advances
Vehicle Loans

From Audi Finance [Refer Note 6 of 5.1]

6 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities:
On difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:
Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Leave Encashment
Prowvision for Doubtful Debts And Advances
Provision for slow moving inventories

7 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Others:
Security Deposits
Deferred Government Grant [Refer Note 42]

Total

'fotai

Total

As at
31 March 2015

As at
31 March 2014

4,76,60,000 9,81,60,000
. 1,15,43,493
7,50,00,000 11,25,00,000
1,99,76,000 2,85 84,000
2,60,00,000 3,80,00,000
16,86,36,000 29,01,87,493
- 500,857
16,86,36,000 29,06,88,350
As at As at

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

8,00,26,579 11,19,89,284
- 7.83 451
17,93,630 43,07,102
38,25,328 40.65,268
42,47 977 11,0447 290
98,66,935 1,96,03,111
7,01,59,644 9,23,96,173
As at As at

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

6,87,30,683 5.43,13,209
87,19,658 =
7,74,50,341 6,43,13,209




il wnuue 12d %52 ¢ | oF wnuue Jad %05 €| Wwoj Bulbuel 1sasiul Jo aied siopanp Jajowosd Jo sasjuesent jeuosiad - AiLUNoas |2J31e)|eD
‘21040 §0°0°SY JO WuSWEISUl [euy B AG PAMOI0) £10C judy ‘uemping ‘josuesy
| woyj Buels yoea a0 g0'0'Sy JO SiuSwESU Apuow [enba 5 JO Aem Ag - sjqeleday P - 8d ‘wesBeysn - Od 'PeOY L 9 ZE/LE 1€ fuadoid ploysay uo sbieyo aasnpxg - Aunoes Lewud ¥
|
wnuue 1ad 0,67 eL o wnuue 13d 9,06'¢) wouy Bulbues jsauziul 1o ey ‘siopa1p sjowaid J0 sasjuBIend [euosiad - Ajundas [B191e|0D
|
(aumny pue juasaud
y £10Z aunr wyoq) s1asse waund sy uo abieyo nssed ued puooas pue Jndued e spnpoid 1emeH Jo Buunoenew
way Buels yoes 21050 F5°0°SY JO SjusLIESU Auayenb enba oz jo fem Ag - ajqefedey € 10) fuope) 2yl 0} pajelal SJaSSE POXI) S|gEACWII PUE SjgeAcW Uo sbBieuos ansnoxg - Aunoss Lewud €

_ __ _ saluedwos dnoib jo sesjurient sieiodiod pue siojaup Jsejowoud jo saajueiend
[ |leuosiad sopang Bwbeueyy 0 SWweu syl ul foljod soueinsu) a4 18S 10 uswubisse ‘papwi IpU| WIpeLyy

wnuue sod %09 €L - ISaUBIUL O ey jo sweu ay ui ‘yals o ebpsid ‘wiupueaul pue ybues Undiey “USEN ANH “Lninyeu3 ‘ledoyg
€10Z UeN ‘pegepawyy e saipadoid ploysses| ‘pegepued 12 fpadoid jo sBeBuow siqeunbl - Aundas [eialeliod
wouy Buuejs Yoea 3U0ID GZ'L'SY 10 SjuBWiEsuUl Apspenb jenba g jo Aem Ag - ajgededay 2 gjasse uauno uo abieyd puooas - funoas Lewud

Fi sawuedwod dnoub jo sesjuesent sjeiodiod pue SI0UIP Jsjowaoud jo seajueient
_ [euosiad ‘papwi elpul WIPEYY JO SWeU au) Ul ‘ggLs Jo abpaid ‘sloy pue peqelspAy ‘2i0sip leuusun

___ ‘a10)equIo?) ‘ai0iebueg Je pajenys saipadoud ploysses) "D e4e JiES 'eased “ieBeuwer Joxley ‘uonels
d ! A1) ‘pROH O3 12 palenys saipadosd g Jeao abfebuow 'syueq Jaquiaul WNRJOSUCD JAYJ0 LM SISE] nssed

| ued uo ininy pue Juasaid yiog Auedwo? ay) JO S19SSe JUBLIND aujua Uo ableyd puz - QuUNoes [esa)e|0]
‘1gjiyg pue jeseleq ‘wajeg ‘lpdweseyq
winuue 33d 9%06°ZL -1S8J9MUl JO Sty 'peOY SAL “teBeueuuy ‘Einpep ‘peoy InD SS0ID JNIod ‘Peoy | g 12ans Anbueo g g ‘lsudepa
ebeuseauug ‘uelfin 'doung ‘mouwyon ‘fung 'peoy Jejoy ‘AuojoD erauy ‘nieyusing CHiRUielep
‘epewipsar wejey lessiwy je pajenys seipedosd pases| ¥Z ‘(yinog) seuebesed pz “xadwon

2100 Z1§'0'SH JO JUSWIIBISUI [BUY PUE DB 21043 ZEG'0'SY JO SlusliEIsUl 1ouyes eunoje)) e palenys Apedoid ployases) ‘uBIay) SISSSE JAUI0 |[B pUB SaunXy pue aumiling ‘SI0UBJUL
Apspenb ¢ ‘yoes BJ0ID BZE L 'SH IO SUSWEISU Ausuenb ¢ Ag pamojio '} LOZ Jequiadeg o uonesaylodAy yumbuole BnNUAAY LEUSQUSEY PuE URIMOH ‘Bupbieq 'ssobeuuepuey] ‘yansuiyy
g wouy Bule)s yoea 94010 981 L SY O SJUSWEISU fusuenb gy o Aem Ag - ajqeheday | ‘ajodweses ‘lemsaueqnyg j2 pajenys saedold psumo £ jo abebpow Ag painoag - funoes ewud

Jselejul Jo ajes pue Juawledey Jo suue) Aunoegs Jo aumeN

sBumoLIoq paindag 10} Juaifedss Jo swaa) pue Hunaag Jo ameN L'§

{peizys asimuayio ssajun ‘saadny Ul sunowe jy)
§10Z UoJeW 1SLE papus Jesk syl o) SJUBWIRIEIS [BIOUBULY G} SAION
A3LIWIM YIGNI WIGVHX




(sampqey JusunD JSUI0 - L1 SI0N 12581) Jgop wiey Buoj jo sanumew juaund, suasaiday #

____

f{ = i » #158°00'S 12101
¥ E: = = /58'00'S 8ouBUl4 IPNY
_ 81-8102 81-L10Z L1-3102 91-610Z yueg ay} Jo AWeN

J13pln S8 pauonusw S| SUED| BpIUsA 0 Aumew panpauyss aul g

000°00°0Z 000'B0'66'9 | 000°8Z'29'6 | #005'S6°0L'LE 1E10]

[ 000'00'02 0000002t |00000°0Z'L | 000'00°0Z') 190IS
_ - 000'89'66 000'80'00'L | 000'80°00'L 1i UeO| WUB] Yues SiXV
_ - 000'00GLE | 000'00°SL'E | D0D'DO'SL'E | UBOT U3 ueg SIXY
_ - 000'0v¥0'L | ooo'0g'zr'e | 0os'28'5H'S uB0 WAL 18S

| 61-8L0Z 81-210Z £1-9102 91-GL0Z jueg ay} Jo aweN

Japun SE pauonUSLL SI SUBD| W) 8584 Jo fiunjew panpauds syl £

Z10Z 1snbny

_ oL Wwoy Buiiers yoes 1010 L0 0'SY JO SuaLeIsul Ayjuoww o Jo Aem Ag - ajqefeday 9 paouRUY 3PDIYSA 3U) JO LORETSYIOdAY Aq painoas St UROT 3RIUSA 9

__ ‘Auedwon
wnuue 12d %05 ¢} 18331 JO SleY Buipjoy j0 ®sjueieng) 3lR10di0) Pue SIORSING JBlowold 4O sajuelent jeuosiad - AunJas |eiale|iod

19QIS S SSUISNg SUWES By} 10} SUEO| PAPUSIXS BABY YOIUM SHUEQ JaUJ0 JO JOAB] L) SI3SSE PIES auj U0 pajeass

(1102 Y2IBW UIST) JUSWIBSINGSIP 1S4 J0 S12p au) wol syjuow aq 0} / polessd sabieyo eapoadsoud pue Bunsixa ay) (|8 O} JUSIABSQNS S| aBreyn ayy -aimny pue juesssd
3 g¢ woy Buipers yoes 21010 0L 0'SY JO SpUBWESUL Auuow oG o Aem Ag - sjgeleday S yjoq ‘(syessy ueung Buipnpuy) siesse sjgescwl auyy |2 o uonedsayiodiy Ag painoeg - Aunoas fewud §
JSalajul j0 a)e) pue Juswieday Jo suua) fQunoag Jo aJmeN

sBuimoiiog paindag 1o} Juawhedas jo swia) pue ALNDAG JO AIMEN L'

(pa1Eys asimiaYyl0 SSajUN ‘saadny Wi sjunowe |y)
S10Z yolel 15L¢ papua Jeal aip Joj SUaWRR)S [BIJUEULY O] SAION
- QILINM VIONI WIGVHM




KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

8 LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Provisions for employee benefits

As at
31 March 2015

As at
31 March 2014

Gratuity - 525,795
Leave Encashment 82,94,154 1.69,53,816
Total 82,94,154 1,74,79,611
9 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
SECURED
Loans repayable on demand
Cash Credit / Working Capital Demand Loans from Banks
SBI Cash Credit [Refer Note 1 of 9.1] 17,80,31,350 27,4244 489
SBI Demand Loan [Refer Note 1 of 9.1] 25,00,00,000 0
SBI - Standby Line of Credit [Refer Note 1 of 9.1] 4,00,00,000 0
SBH Cash Credit [Refer Note 2 of 9.1] 23,80,71,612 16,52,64,713
YES Bank Cash Credit [Refer Note 1 of 9.1] 3,27,06,612 2,22,00,724
ICICI Bank Demand Loan [Refer Note 3 of 9.1] 7,50,00,000 0
YES Bank Demand Loan [Refer Note 4 of 9.1] 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
Axis Bank Cash Credit [Refer Note 1 of 9.1) 4,99,90,645 33,058,912
ICICI Bank Cash Credit [Refer Note 1 of 9.1] 2,89,00,325 2,90.43 462
HDFC Bank Cash Credit [Refer Note 1 of 9.1] 9,99,50,100 -
101,26,50,644 51,40,59,310
Bank Overdraft
From Banks
ICICI Bank [Refer Note 1 of 8.2] 1,21,24,222 1.00,19,009
YES Bank [Refer Note 2 of 9.2] - 4,97 85,789
HDFC Bank [Refer Note 2 of 9.2] - 20,58,95,458
1,21,24,222 26,57,00,256
Buyer's Credit from Banks
SBI [Refer Note 1 of 9.1] 2,57,19,801 -
Total 105,04,94,667 77,97,59,566
3 S~
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED '
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

9.1 Nature of Security of Working Capital Demand Loans and Buyer's credit from Banks

Nature of Security

1 Primary security - Hypothecation charge on inventory, receivables and all other current assets of the

Company, both present and future, on pari-passu basis with other working capital member banks under the
consortium.

Collateral security - 2nd charge on the primary security for all SBI Term loans, equitable mortgage of
properties at Kancharapara, VVadodara, Building Space No. S-32/1, S-32/2 and S-32/1A of Phase | and S-
43, S-43/1, S-44/1 of Kasba Industrial Estate and Flat at Janakpuri, New Delhi, on pari-passu basis with
other working capital members banks under the consortium, personal guarantees of promoter directors and
corporate guarantees of group companies.

Primary security - Same as SBI Cash Credit (Refer Note 1 above).

Collateral security - Equitable mortgage of properties at Kancharapara, Vadoedara, Building Space No. S-
32/1, S-32/2 and S-32/1A of Phase | and $-43, S-43/1, S-44/1 of Kasba Industrial Estate and Flat at
Janakpuri, New Delhi, on pari-passu basis with other working capital members banks under the consortium,
exclusive charge on property at P-43 and P-43A at Kasba Industrial Estate, Kolkata, subservient charge on
all the movable and immovable assets of the Company, personal guarantees of promoter directors and
corporate guarantees of group companies.

Primary security - Secured by hypothecation of all credit card receivables both present and future,
mortgage of factory building at S19, S20 and S21 at Kasba, Kolkata, retail outlet at Rashbehari Avenue,
Kolkata, liquid security in form of fixed deposits, Corporate guarantee of the Holding Company and personal
guarantee of Managing Director.

Secured by subservient charge on all Current Assets, movable fixed assets and immovable properties (both
present and future) of the Company alongwith personal guarantee of Managing Director.

9.2 Nature of Security for Bank Overdraft

Nature of Security

1 Primary security - Secured by hypothecation of all credit card receivables both present and future,

mortgage of factory building at S19, S20 and $S21 at Kasba, Kolkata, retail outlet at Rashbehari Avenue,
Kolkata, liquid security in form of fixed deposits, Corporate guarantee of the Holding Company and personal
guarantee of Managing Director,

2 Secured by lien on specified fixed deposits of the Company.,

N
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

TRADE PAYABLES

Acceplances
Other than Acceptances (Refar Note 10.1)
Empioyee Benefits Payable

Total

Details Of Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2008

Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises
Total outstanding Dues other than Micro and Small Enterprises

Total
There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are
outstanding for more than 45 days during the year and also as at 31 March, 2015. This information as
required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008 has
peen determined 1o the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with
the Company.

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long - term debt:
Vehicle Loans
Term Loans

Zero Coupon Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (Unsecured) [Refer Note 3.5]
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Advance from customers and others
Security Deposits
Investors Education and Protection Fund (the fund) shall be credited
by the foliowing amount
Unclaimed/Unpaid Dividend [Refer Note 11.1]
Other payables:
Statutory remittances (VAT and Sales Tax, Contribution to Provident and Other Funds,
Withholding Tax)
Deferred Government Grant [Refer Note 42]

Asg at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
10,34,13,206 11,46,58,004
46,91,30,806 82,70,92,950
91,97,505 3,35,59,143
58,17,41,517 87.53,10,097
As at As at

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

1,33,83,620 1,84,78,796
45,57,47,186 80,86,14,154
46,91,30,806 82,70,92,950
As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
5,00,857 14,18,801
11,10,95,500 19,76,08,000
11,15,96,357 19,90,27,801
. 77,46,38,400
3,36,607 4,18,107
57,82,738 54,65,033
3,49,33,501 1,61,49,333
48,23,531 39,42,038
1,335 1,335
2,39,38,515 2,93,15,749
10,62,652 -
59,19,462 22,66,327
18,83,94,698 1,03,12,24,123

Others
Total
There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 as at the
year end,
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity
L.eave Encashment

Others
Provision for Income Tax [Net of advance taxes Rs.3,24,10,688; Previous Year Rs.7,32,61,650]

Total

As at
31 March 2015

As at
31 March 2014

: 12,889,463
11,48,351 40,758
11,48,351 13,890,221

1,81,46,808 1,07,04,846

1,62,94,159 2,11,85,067
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwlise stated)

15 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
(At Cost)

Investments in Mutual Fund
Quoted :
UTI Infrastructure Fund of Rs.21.09 each

Total
Aggregate book value of investments
Quoted
Unquoted

Total

Aggregate market value of quoted investments

As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Number Amou'nt qunber Amount
22,876 4,82,451 22,876 4,82 451
4,82,451 4,82,451
4,82,451 4,82 451
4,82,451 4,82,451
5,72,980 3.89.432
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015 .
(All amounts In Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
16 LONG -TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Unsecured, Considered Good
Capital Advances 74,00,131 83,55 184
Security Deposits 18,19,31,49%9 16,28 97 322
Other Loans and advances.
Prepaid expenses 50,22,228 -
Advance income tax [Net of Provision for Income Tax Rs.7,35,43,283; Previous Year Rs.7,35,43,283) 3,21,38,960 38,665,576
On account payments to Minority Shareholders (in cash/in kind) - 19, 98,01 458
pursuant to order of Company Law Board (Refer Note 33)
Less; Written off pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement for Capital Reduction (Refer Note 33) - (19,98.01,458)
Other fong term advances 66,25,160 65,29,000
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful
Capital Advances 2,54,000 2.54,000
Security Deposits 27,427 27.427
Less : Provision for Doubtful Advances/ Security Deposits (2,81,427) (2,81,427)
Total 23,31,17,978 18,17,47,092
17 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Unsecured, Considered Good
Government Grant Receivable (Refer Note 42) 90,286,000
Total 90,26,000 -
18 INVENTORIES As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Raw Material, packing material and components (including goods in transit 8,85,80,806 12,87,94,706
Nil; Previous Year - 10,17,325)
Work-in-progress (footwear) 6,57,47,731 7.72,43,561
Finished goods® (Refer Notes 18.1) 86,11,14,844 1,03,67,63,593
Stock-in-rade (Refer Note 18.2) 13,57,89,325 14,08,75,558
1,15,12,32,706 1,39,26,77,418
Less: Diminution in value of inventories (37,50,000) (22,00,00,000)|#
Less: Provision for slow moving inventories (97,00,000) {3,22,00,000)
Total 1,13,77,82,706 1,14,04,77,418

“Finished goods include stock in trade of footwear and accessories, as both are stocked together,
# Refer Note 33

18.1 Refer Note 2.7 above for mode of valuation

Y
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4 KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
/ Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
(All amounts In Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

18.2 Details of Stock in Trade -
Particulars

Stoek of Gold and Jewellery
Dthers Stock (apparsls, eic)

Less. Diminution in value of inventorias

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are
due for payment.

Secured, considerad goog

Unsecured considared good

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less . Provision for doubtful debts

Other trade receivables
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered goad

20 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand
Chequesidrafts on hand
Balances with banks

On Cument Accounts

Other Bank Balances
On Dividend Accounts
On Margin Accounts
On Fixed Deposits®
- Against guarantess and letter of credit
- As secunly with Sales Tax Authorities
- Pladged agains! bark overdraft

"Represents deposits with onginal malurity of more than 3 months and includes deposits with remaining

balance shest date Rs.,31,46 538 (Previous Year Rs.31.03,149)]

2

-

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured, Considered Good
Advance to Suppliers
Trade advances to related partias
Other trade advances
Others.
Employes Advances
Advance to Government Authorilies
Prepayments
Gratuity
Cthers (advance against axpanses)
Unsecured, Considered Doubtiul
Advance to Suppliers (other trade advances)

Less | Provision for Douttful Advances

22 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecured, Considered Good

Ingrest Receivable

Fixed assets held for sale

Governinan| Grant Recelvable (Refer Note 42)
Others (Accrued export incentive, atc. |

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

As at
31 March 2016

As at
31 March 2014

|31 March 2015 |

13,67,89,326 10,88,60,760
2 4,00,14,798
13,57,89,326 14,98,75,658
{37,50,000) =
13,20,39,328 14,98,75 658
As at As at

31 March 2014

66,46,623 84 ,44,621
67,75,808 13,32,630
1,26,48,808 133.74 512
2,50,71,539 2,31,61,783
1,26,48, 808 1,33,74,512
1,24,22, 731 97,77,251
3,12,66,747 4,09,69 488
19,72,13,308 520105706

[ 22,84,80,063 |

66,10,76,174

24,08,02,784 67,08,52,426
As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
60,95,745 90,70,566
36,31,139 23,089
239,63 021 17 96 825
3,36 89 805 1,08,90 580
1,336 1,335
1,94,007 94 488
§1,74,470 47.71,031
2,78,503 2,58 807
8,10,67,096 29,85 32,972
9,07,18,411 30,35,56,633
12,4405 316 31,45,47,213
e el e

maturity ef more than 12 months from the

As al
31 March 2015

As at
31 March 2014

1,566,190 2,587,236
98,695,613 74,58 211
§,01,018 9,96,674
7,99,36,047 5,82,00,488
1,93,66,905 2,068.18,580
7,49,631 i
1,25,369 74,184
7,16,518 7,16,518
(7,16,618) (7,16,518)
11,09,94,673 8,86,03 661
As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2014
22,965,899 16,867,627
5,24,93 339 5,24,93,339
36,156,948 78,53,166
24,54,436 15,809,962
(—0859622] §,36,04,024




KHADIM INDIA LIMITED "
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of products (Refer Note 23.1)

Other operating revenues

Sale of packing materials

Scrap Sales

Export incentive (Duty drawback, etc)
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (gross)

Less Excise Duty

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (net)

Detalls of sale of products

Footwear and accessories

Large Format Retail - Apparels*

Large Format Retail - Other than Apparels®
Gold Jewellery

Total
*Discontinued w.e.f 21 January 2015

OTHER INCOME

Interest
- On deposits with Banks

QOn deposits with others
- On Income Tax Refunds
Dividend Income from Current Investmants
Gain on Sale of Current Investments
Reversal of reduction in carrying amount of Leng-term investment
Other non-operating income:
Net gain on foreign currency transactions
Profit on sale of fixed assets (nat)
Royalty
Government Grant received (Refer Note 42)
Insurance Claim
Liabilities/Provisions no longer required written back
Miscellaneous Income

Total

For the year
ended 31 March

2015 |

4,56,17,29,425

For the year
ended 31 March
2014

4,75,85,78,907

3,73,87,233 3,88,51,017
1,62,71,849 58,78,656
30,12,449 34,40,834
4,61,84,00,958 4,80,77,49,414
1,68,25,430 2,63,50,512
4,60,15,75,5626 4,78,13,88 902
For the year For the year
ended 31 March ended 31 March
2015 2014
4,07,61,57,195 4,19,9592 672
8,22,09,807 9,18,21,739
1,90,71,123 3,01,85271
38,42,81,300 43,78,79,225
4,56,17,29,425 4,76,95,78,907
For the year For the year
ended 31 March ended 31 March
2015 2014
68,65,849 1,69,58,754
1,78,097 2,52,563
- 80,955
- 10,08,586
69,76,842 84,52,262
- 1,368,378
31,112,423 1,03,04 856
1,82,44,441 s
40,731 16,403
28,59,638 -
46,91,025 12,96,028
69,84,206 16,39,508
56,03,739 8962473
§,54,66,991 4,91,20,866
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

a

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Opening Inventory
Add Purchases (Net)

Less: Closing Inventory
Matenals Consumed

Details of Materials (Including Components and packing materials ) consumed:

Indigenous

PVC Compound
(Previous Year)

Packing materials
(Previous Year)

EVA Compound (Injected)
(Previous Year)

Leather
{Previous Year)

Natural rubber
(Previous Year)

EVA Compound (Compressed)
(Previous Year)

Others
(Previous Year)

Imported ;

EVA Compound (Compressed)
(Previous Year)

(Previous Year)

(Previous Year)

(Previous Year)

Total

A+B

For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31
March 2015 March 2014
12,87,94,706 12,40,59,945
57,17,93,653 50 82,81,765
70,05,88,359 63,23,41,710
8,85,80,806 12,87,94,708
61,20,07,553 50,35,47,004
61,20,07,553 50,35,47,004
Value Percentage
8,98,45,096 15
14,13,71,146 28
18,49,23,011 30
13,48,60,591 27
1,36,23,874 2
4,13,84,967 8
2,08,19,040 3
1,84,89,090 4
3,77,19,763 8
3,71,88,600 7
5,37,67,560 9
5,28 32,344 10
17,73,68,351 28
7,74,10,266 16
57,80,66,695 94
50,35,47,004 100
3,39,40,858 6
3,39,40,858 6
61,20,07,553 100.00
50,35,47 004 100.00
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
{All amounts In Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

Footwear and accessories

Large Format Retail - Apparels

Large Format Retail - Other than Apparels
Gold and Jewellery

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOO0DS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Inventories at the end of the year

Stock-in-trade

Work - in - progress (footwear)

Finished goods

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Stock-in-trade

Work - in - progress (footwear)
Finished goods

increase/(Decrease) in excise duty on inventories

TOTAL NET (INCREASE) DECREASE

Inventories of finished goods at the beginning of the year
Less: Diminution in value of inventories

Less: Provision for slow moving inventories

Inventeries of finished goods (as above)

For the year
ended 31 March

For the year
ended 31 March

2015 2014
2,12,56,56,656 2,15,18,39,687
1,87,45177 5,85,67,659
2,20,28,580 2,10,82,493
38,21,14,528 33,40,20,085

Total 2,54,854454 2,56,35,18,
For the year For the year For the year

ended 31 March ended 31 March ended 31 March

2015 2015 2014
13,20,39,325 14,98,75,558
6,57,47,731 7,72,43 561
B5,14,14,844 1,03,67 63,593

1,04,92,01,%00

1,26,38,82,712

14,98,75,558 21,78,20,203

7,72,43,561 8,08,59,968

78,46,63,593 |+ 1,02,89,93 600

1,01,16,82,712 1,32,76,73,769

(3,75,19,188) 6,37,91,057

6,59,268 (9,47 ,298)

(3,68,59,920) 6,28,43,759
1,03 67 63,593
22,00,00,000
3,22,00,000
78,45,63,593
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salanes and wages
Contribution to Provident and other funds

Staff Welfare Expenses

Employee Benefits

Total

For the year
ended 31 March

For the year
ended 31 March

2015 _ 2014
41,03,32,233 37,50,83,655
1,54,87,341 1,60,26,875
3,48,88,752 3,03,86.277
46,07,08,326 42,15,06,807

The Company has recognised, in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2015 an amount of Rs.1,36,47,377 (Previous
Year Rs.1,20,37,289) as expenses under defined contribution plans (Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund).

Defined Benefit Plan

The employees’ gratuity fund scheme is managed by Life Insurance Corporation Of India (LICI) as a defined benafit plan. The present value of
obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method , which recognizes each period of service as giving
rise 1o additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures sach unit seperately to build up the final obligation. The obligation for leave
encashment is recognized in same manner as gratuity and managed by SBI Life Insurance Company Limiled,
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

29 FINANCE COSTS

Interest Expense
Other borrowing costs

Total

30 OTHER EXPENSES

Cansumption of Stores
Rent
Rates and Taxes [including Wealth Tax Rs.41,790 (Previous Year Rs.42,993)]
Bank Charges
Insurance
Repairs: 1
Buildings

Plant and Machinery
Other

Travelling and Conveyance Expenses

Stationery and Printing

Postage, Telephone and other Communication Expenses

Advertising, Marketing and Sales Promotion Expenses

Power and Fuel

Freight Charges, Transport and Delivery

Jobwork and Hallmarking Charges

Professional Fees

Commission and Discount

Legal Expenses

Debts/Advances/Claims written off

Loss on sale/discard of Assets - Net

Provision for doubtful debts,advances and other assets
Provision for slow moving inventories
Security Hire Charges
Miscellaneous Expenses {Refer Note 30.1)

Total

30.1 Miscellaneous Expenses include

Amount paid fpayable to Auditors (excluding service tax)

- Statutory Audit

- Tax Audit

- Other matters

- Out of pocket expenses

\;—;— Total

For the year

ended 31 March

For the year
ended 31 March

2015 2014
16,74,24,418 22,4071 089
2,47,29,688 3,20,10,332
19,21,54,106 25,60,81,421
For the year For the year
ended 31 March ended 31 March
2015 2014
11,25,811 5.49,214
16,41,87,785 12,69,25 941
2,23,42,917 2,32,18,939
98,66,266 1,18,17,452
1,47,11,634 1,52,69,808
30,61,176 36,93 591
63,41,805 74,07,000
7,68,37,582 7,03,89,144
3,96,89,250 3,10,37,868
26,78,327 29,45,758
2,10,72,394 2,01,08108
17,21,79,184 11,41,44 784
9,53,22,284 8,96,52,396
12,55,49,106 9,756,69.450
1,96,24,069 2,07,68,849
4,58,37,556 3,77,78,314
1,92,19,188 64,94,889
1,24,266 381214
- 1,78,935
. 45,57,033
22,36,224 32,67,397
- 3,22,00,000
1,94,37,438 1,96,23,414
1,85,55,135 1,35,70,762
87,69,99,395 75,35,48,358

For the year
ended 31 March

For the year
ended 31 March

2015 2014
12,00,000 11,00,000
3,00,000 2,00,000
2,20,000 -
57,909 -
17,77,909 13,00,000
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015 i
(All amounts in Rupeas, unless otherwise stated)

The Company has entered into operating Lease arrangements primarily for various commercial premises / retail outlets and distribution centres,

Some of the significant terms and conditions are
- These leasing arrangements which are not non - cancellable range between 11 months and 40 years generally, or longer, and are usually

renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.

Rentin respect of the above amounting to Rs.16,41, 87,785 (Previous Year - Rs.12,69,25941) has been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in
"Other Expenses"”

As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014

Contingent Liabllities in respect of -

Claims not acknowledged as debts :
Sales Tax Matters under dispute 1,30,38,200 41,68 655

Income Tax Matters under dispute 12,11,442 12,11,442
Service Tax matters under dispute 1,51,000 1,61,000
22,50,632 22,50,632

Excise Duty matters under dispute

Itis not practicable for the Company to estimate the closure of these issues and the consequential timings of cash fiows, if any, in respect
of the above.

Capital Commitment (Net of capital advances Rs.76,54,131; Previous Year - Rs.86,09,194) | 2933923 [ 54,30,572 |

The Board of Directors of the Company al its meeting dated 30 October, 2013 had proposed a Scheme of Arrangement for Reduction of Share
Capital ("Scheme") under Sections 100, 101, 102 and 103 of the Companies Act, 1856 for Reduction of Share Capital, The Scheme was approved
by Members of the Company by Special Resolution passed at their Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 30th October, 2013 and confirmed by
the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court on 14th March, 2014, Pursuant to such approval by the Members of the Company and confirmation by the Hon'ble
Calcutta High Court. the Company has reduced its issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital from Rs 48,54,09,520 divided into
4,85,40,852 number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up to Rs. 12,13,52,380 divided into 4,85,40,852 equity shares of Rs. 2.50 each fully
paid (Refer Note 3.6) and reduced its Securities Premium Account by Rs.5,57,44,318 adjusting with 'Diminution in value of inventory' amaunting lo
Rs.22,00.00,000 (Refer Note 18) and*Payments to minority shareholders Account' amounting to Rs.19,98,01,459 {Refer Note 16). Subsequently,
the Company has obtained a 'Certificate of Registration of order confirming Reduction of Capital' from the Registrar of Companies dated 27th June,
2014 on submission of the said Scheme.
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Earnings Per Share {EPS) - The numerator and denominator used to calculate Baslc and Diluted EPS :

Profit/{Loss) after Tax attributable to the Equity Shareholders

Basic

Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year

Number of Bonus shares issued on 30th October 2013

Consolidation of 4 Equity Shares of Rs.2.50 each into 1 Equity Share of Rs.10 each
Number of Equity Shares shares issued on conversion of debentures

Number of Equity Shares at the end of lhe year

Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year

Mominal Value of each Equity Share (Rs)

Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.)

Diluted

Weighted average number of Equity Shares for Basic EPS
Add: Effect of Convertible debentures which are dilutive
Weighted average number of Equity Shares for Diluted EPS
Nominal Value of each Equity Share (Rs)

Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.}

"After considering bonus lssue
# After considering the impact of consolidation of Equity shares [Refer Note 3.7)

AlB

Year Ended
31 March_ 2018

Year Ended
31 March 2014

(18,68,71,452)

4,85,40,062

(3,64,06,714)
61,63,293
1,72,98,531
1,56,72,718
10/

{11.98)
1,56,72,718
17,25,813
1,72,98,531
10/-

(10.79)

10,70,17,098

1,21,35,238
3,64,05714
(3,64,05,714)

3*

121,35,236 |*
,21,35,238
2.50/-\#

1
1
B.82

1,21,35,238
27,30,434 |#
14865672
2.50/-|#

7.20

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Manufacturing / Retail business of Footwear, Leather Accessories and Gold Jewellery catering predominantly
to the domestic market and therefore, according to the management, this is 2 'Single Segment' Company, as envisaged in the Accounting Standard (AS) 17-

Segment Reporting.

\&_‘\
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
{All amounts in Rupaes, uniess otherwise stated)

Related Party Disclosure in keeping with Accounting Standard 18 on "Relatad Party Disclosures”

List of Related Parties
Ultimate Holding Company Knightzville Private Limited

Key Managemen! Personnel (KMF}

Mr. Sigdhartha Roy Burman - Chairman and Managing Direcior

Mrs, Tanushree Roy Burman - Wholetime Director

Mr. Suman Barman Roy, Chiaf Executive Officer (till 31st March 2018)

Mrs.Ishani Ray, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Joydev Sengupta, Company Secretary and Head Legal (till 3181 March 2015}

Enterprises over which KMP and their
Relatives have substantial interast
Khadim Enterprises
K.M.Khadim & Ca.
St.Marys' Clinic & Drug Stores

Shaila Depanimantal Stores Private Limited

Bee Tee Enlerprise
Moviewallah Commy

Ralatves of KMP

Khadim Financial Services Private Limited
Khadim Development Company Pnvate Limited

Private Limited

Mr. Partha Roy Burman (Brother of Mr. Siddhartha Roy Burman)

Mrs. Basabdutta Rey Burman (Wife of Mr.Partha Roy Burman)
Mrs. Namita Roy Burman (Mother of Mr. Siddnartha Roy Burman)
Mr. Ritoban Roy Burman (Son of Mr.Siddhartha Roy Burman)

Mr Rittick Roy Burman (Son of Mr.Siddhartha Roy Burman)

Particulars of transactions during the year ended 31st March, 2015 !

Particulars

L Uitimate Holding Company
a) Unsecured loan repaid {including accrued interest)

b} Imerast paid
¢} Year - and Balance

1} K. A

aj Remunaration [Refer Note 36.1]
- Siddharnha Roy Burman

- Tanusres Roy Burman

- Suman Barman Roy

- Ishani Ray

- Joydev Sengupta
b) Rent paid 1o Sigdhartha Roy Burman
<) Year - end Balance

- Sigghartha Roy Burman

- Tanusree Roy Burman

SR 1595 OVOTr Wi il * !

a) Advances given / refunded to parties

- Moviewaliah Communications Pvi Ltd

- Khadim Developmant Co Pwt Ltd

b} Advances received from / refunded by pariles

- Moviewallah Communications Pyl Lid

- Khadim Developmeant Co Pt Lid

¢) Unsacured loan repaid (including accrued intarest) to Sheila Dapartmantal Stores Pyt Lid
d) Royalty received from K M Khadim & Co

@} Interest paid to Sheila Departmental Stores Pyt Lid
f} Rent paid to Khadim Development Co Pt Lid
@) Sales lo K M Khadim & Co

h} Advertisment cost paid to Movi llah Commi,
1) Commission pad

- Knadim Emerprises

- Bee Tes Enterprises

- Sheila Departmental Stores Pyt Lid

- 51 Mary's Clinic & Drug Stores

i) Year - and Balance

- Khadim Enterprises

- Bee Tee Enterprises

- Sheila Departmental Stores Pvi Lid

- 5t. Mary's Clinic & Drug Storas

- Khadim Cevelopmeant Co Pvt Lid

- K M Khadim & Co

15 Pt Lid

i a
a) Advances Given
b) Remuneration
¢) Year - and Balance (Net)

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
- 22785177
. 11,44,504
1,83,26,700 2,08,81,450
21,891,147 22,76,123
54,66 508 §2,81,524
41,76,672 38,97 476
23,84 740 3,25,46,055 20,33.276 3,41,49.848
60,000 60,000
5,000 (Cr.) 27,73,023 (Cr}
- 5,000 (Cr.) 1,086,991 (Cr) | 2880014 (Cr)
21,30,770 -
. 21,30,7T0 1,22 50,000 1,22,50,000
21,30,770 6,50.72,979
- 21,30,770 7,12 87,341 13,63,60,320
¥ 20,01,578
40,731 18,403
" 315,816
6,36,000 6,38,000
24,117,995 785,700
37,50,000 -
2,99,224 -
6,66,014 -
6,44,570 -
1,23,385 17,33,193 - -
§,17,461 (Cr.) 1,868,588 (Cr.)
15,42,582 (Cr.) 8,41,329 (Cr)
15,23,370 (Cr) 3,57,334 (Cr)
1,656,180 (Dr.) 3,52,074 (Dr)
47,700 (Cr.) 47,700 (Cr)
41,682 (Or.) 34,233,232 (Cr.) 8,568,523 (Dr.) 3.26,352 (Cr)
- €,00,00,000
31,25,208 37.08.827

Remuneration paid 10 Key Management Perscnnel compnse Rs.2.05,17.848 atinbulable to remuneration of twe directors which is subject to approval by the members of the

Company in General Magting
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015

{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Value of Imported and Indigenous
Consumption of Stores

Imported
Indigenous

C.LF. Value of imports :
(a) Raw materials

(b) Fimished Footwear
(c) Capital Goods

Expenditure in Foreign Currency :

{a) Travelling
(b) Interest on foreign currency term loan

Earnings in Foreign Exchange

(a) Export of goods calculated on FOB basis

Foreign Exchange Contracts:

Year Ended
31 March 2015

%

Year Ended
31 March 2014

%

23,70,12,842

9,865,829
13,583,817

23,39,646

2,50,47,936

Value Value
11,25,811 100 5,49 214 100
11,25,811 100 5,49.214 100
4,26,79,704 572826
18,17,41,367 20,13,54,296
1,25,91,771 3.87.81877

24,07,09,088

13,69.636
2,368,015

16.07,651

28562178

The Company uses forward exchange contracts (being derivative instruments), which are not intended for trading or speculative purposes

to hedge Its exposures in foreign currency.

e Company

Outstanding forward exchange contracts entered into by th
Currency | Amount as at Buy/Sell Cross
31st March Currency
2015
UsD 18,38,630 Buy Rupees
) )

Note: Figures in brackets relate to the previous year

41.2 The year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:

As at 31st March 2015 As at 31st March 2014
Receivable/ Currency Receivable/ | Receivable/ Currency Recelvable/
(Payable) in (Payabie) in | (Payable)in {Payable) in
Rupees foreign Rupees foreign currency
currency
. 6148612 LISD 98,821 1.11,812186 usD 1,90,861
6.86.111 Euro 10,257 - - -
(1,53,04,731) uspD (2.44,817) (9,65,214) uso (16,928)
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Details of Government grants
During the year West Bengal Industrial Development Corporation Limited, approved a grant of Rs 1,00,28,000 under their Fixed Capital
Investment Subsidy of "The West Bengal State Support for Industries Scheme, 2008 (WBSSIS - 2008)" towards purchaselinstallation of
specified machines at its manufacturing facility at Panpur factory. The said assistance is lo be released in ten annual installments by
way of adjustment against VAT paid by the unit in the previous year. The grant was treated as a deferred income and is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of related assets

During the year, the Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Government of India, approved a grant of Rs.26,13,948 to the Company under
their "Integrated Development of Leather Sector (IDLS)" Scheme lowards purchasefinstallation of specified machines al its
manufacturing facility The said assistance is o be released after execution of agreement with State Bank of Hyderabad (nominated
bank) on behalf of Government of India. The grant was treated as a deferred income and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of related assets

Pursuant to the transition provisions prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has fully depreciated the
carrying value of assets, net of residual value, where the remaining useful life of the asset was determined to be Nil as on April 1, 2014,
and has adjusted an amount of Rs, 3,46,62,280 (net of deferred tax of Rs, 1,71,21,158) against the opening Surplus balance in the
Statement of Profit and Loss under Reserves and Surplus. The depreciation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year is
nigher by Rs. 8,50,07,567/- consequent to the change in the useful life of the assets.

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no impairment on assets as at 31st March, 2015

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary

Signatures to Notes '1' to ‘45

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(’h@?*mw@

Siddhartha Roy Burman
Chairman and Managing Director

i g £55mmn

Tanusree Roy Burma
Wholetime Director

shani Ray -~
Chief Financial Officer

Ao Lpar—"

Abhijit Dan
Company Secretary & Head - Legal

g

Place: Kolkata
Date: 31st July 2015




